: Mote®; If ary discrepaney in information please iry alter samelms,

i Registered Office: : :
Tea Estate: Paramount Apartment, Flat 2C Head Office:
Durrung Tea Estate 75 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar
P.0.; Bindulcuri 784 502 Kollata 700 019 Dibrugarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone: (033) 24757811 /12 Assam
Assam Email: admin@jalanindustries.com Phone: {0373) 2302895 -

Email: durrungteaestate@gmail.com finance jalanindustries@gmail.com Email: headoffice@jalanindustries.com

' DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

DUR/2023-24 CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045 4™ September,2024

To,

The Secretary

The Calcutia Stock Exchange Ltd
7 Lyons Range
' Kolkata-700001,

Ref : Script Code 029220

Subject-— Copy of Natice of Annual General Meeting & Other Documents

Dear Sir,

We are enclosing herewith the followings documents for Annual Genera!' Meeting to be held on
28" September,2024.

Motice dated 14™ August,24.
Calendar of Events.
Attendance Slip.

MGT 12--- Polling Paper.
MGT 11 —- Proxy Form

e 1o, o

Please acknowledge the receipt .
Regards .
Thanking You,

For Durrung Tea Estate Limited

f \
Avantika Jalan W / e
Director T84

DIN 03333825

Enct As Above
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g.(l.: Bingﬁukuri 784 502 Kolkata 700 019 Dibrugarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone: (033) 24757811 [12 Assam
Assam Email: admin@jalanindustries.com Phone: (0373) 2302895

Email: durrungteaestate@gmail.com finance jalanindustries@gmail.com Email: headoffice@jalariindustries.com

' DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Members of Durrung Tea
Estate Limited will be held physically at the Registered Office of the Company at
Paramount Apartment Flat No. 2C,2™ Floor, 25 Ballygunge Circular Road,Kolkata-
700019 on Saturday 28" September,2024 at 1.00 p.mto transact the following
businesses.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31st March'2024 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr Vadakkillam S. Nayar (DIN 07612736), who retire by
rotation and being eligible offer herself for re-appointment

SPECIAL BUSINESSES

3. Appointment of Mr Ranjan Kumar Saraf (DIN 10539571) as an Independent Director of
the Company w.e.f. 7" March 2024.

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
a special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152,160,161 read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as well as other rules made thereunder
and the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) , the provision of Articles of Association and based on the recommendation
of the Nominee and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Saraf (DIN:1 0539571),.who was appointed as an additional Directors
under the category of Independent Director on 7 March’204 and who has submitted a declaration
that lie meets the criteria of Independence under section 149(6) of the Act read with rules framed
thereunder under regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing regulation and is eligible for appointment as an
Independent Director be and is hereby appointed as an non-executive [ndependent Director not liable
to retire by rotation for a consecutive terms of five years with effect from7" March,2024 to 6" March
2029.” e




4, Re-appoint of ritvunjay Ja DIN 007259366)as a Managing Director

To Consider and if thought fit, o pass, with or without modification(s), the foliuwlng resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197, 203 read with Schedule V & other
applicable Sections read with Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,
2014 and all other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re - enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per SEBI (LODR) regulations
2015, consent of the members of the Company be and are hereby accorded, for re-appointment of Mr.
Mrityunjay Jalan (DIN: 07259366) as Managing Director under the category of KMP , who shall be subject to
retirement by rotation in terms of section 152 read with other relevant provisions including section 160 of
the Companies Act 2013 on the Board of the Company for a consecutive period of five years with effect from
1s April, 2024 to hold office till 31 March,2029 on such remuneration and benefits as approved by the Board
of Directors in their meeting held on 7% March 2024 and which will be subject to overall maximum limit as
stipulated in section 197 of the Companies Act 2013 with 2 liberty and authority given to the Board of
Directors to alter, modify and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment from time to time within
the scope of schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 ,or any amendments thereto or any re-enactment thereof
as may be agreed between Board of Directors and Mr Mrityunjay Jalan.”

The Managing Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the Board may by its
discretion determine.

“Resolved further that in the event of loss or in adequacy of profit in any financial year during the currency
of his tenure of service ,the payment of Salary , perquisites and other allowances shall be governed by the
limits prescribed under Section Il of Part 11 of schedule V ,of the Companies Act 2013 "

Avantika Jalan
Directer

DIN :03333925
Place: Kolkata

Date The14!™ August,2024

NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote, inetead of him/har. A proxy need notbe a WMember of tha CaMipany. In oraer o

bo affactive, the inetrument appointing proxy must reach the Registered Office of




and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the Paid up Capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than fen percent of the
Paid up Capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person
as proxy and such person shall notactas proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to notify to the Registrar of the
Company, M/s. ABS CONSULTANT PVT LTD, Stephen House, 6ih Floor, Room No. 99, 4,
B.B.D. Bag (East), Kolkata—700 001, any change in their address and Bank details quoting
their Folio numbers and update their email id and Members holding shares in glectronic
mode are requested to inform the same also to their respective depository participants for
incorporating updated information.

. The Register of Members and Equity Share Transfer Registers will remain closed from 21°

September'2024 to 28" September'2024 (both days inclusive).

_ In terms of circular issued by the SEBI, it is now mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN

card to the Company/RTA in case of transfer, transposition and transmission of
shares. So Members are requested to furnish copy of PAN card for all the above
mentioned transactions

. Company will take all the necessary steps to maintain the social distancing norms

during the whole period of meting.

. Voting through electronic means

(8) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and
Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial standards on
General Meeting ( SS2) issued by the Institute of Companies Sectaries of India, The
Company is pleased to provide e voting facilities also to its Members to exercise their
right to votes on the resolutions set forth in the Notice of the AGM using electronic
voting system provided by Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

(b) The notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company inter alia indicating
the process and manner of e-Voting along with printed Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being dispatched to those members, whose name/s are on the Register of
Members as well as in the beneficiary list of NSDL and CDSL on
16t August’ 2024 (Being cut off date decide by the Board for sending notice of AGM)
The e-Voting particulars are provided at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the
Annual General Meeting (AGWM).

(c) The e-voting period will begins on Wednesday 25t September'2024 from 9.00
A.M.(IST) and ends on Friday 27"September’2024 at 5.00 P.M.(IST) During this
period shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-offfentitlement date 20% September'2024 (Being
cut off date for e- voting decide by the Board) may cast their vote electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by GDSL for voting thereafter.

(d) Once the vote on a resolution cast by the members, the member shall not be allow to
change supsequently or Gaot (e vote sgain The veting rights of the Members shall be
in proportion to their sharse «f the paid up aquity share capital of the Company as on
the out-off date Friday of 20t September'2024. One fully paid share held by
membaer will be equal to one vote .
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(e) Mr. Pravin Kumar Drolia (Practicing Company Secretary) of 8, Crooked Lane, 39
Floor,RoomNo.19 Kolkata—700069, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize
the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(f) The facility of physical voting through Ballot paper shall also be available at the venue
of AGM. Physical Ballot Forms shall be distributed to the members attending the
meeting and only those Members attending the meeting, who have not cast their vote
through remote e voting prior to AGM shall be allowed to exercise their voting rights at
the meeting. At the end of discussion on the resolutions set out in the notice on which
voting s to be held, the Chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer, order
voting through ballot paper.

(g) The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM count the
votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the vote cast through remote e-voting in
the presence of at least two (2) witness, who will not in the employment of the
Company. The Scrutinizer shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total
votes cast in favour of or against, if any, within 48 hours after the conclusion of the
AGM to the Chairman of the company. The chairman of the meeting or any other
director/person authorized by the Chairman shall declare the result of the voting
forthwith not later than 30 September,2024 at registered office of the Company.

(h) The Results along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the notice board of
the Company immediately after the result is declared by the chairman or any other
director authorized by the Chairman, and same shall be communicated to CDSL and
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited.

MEMBERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM, AND PROXIES
THEREOF AND WANT TO ATTEND MEETING PHYSICALLY, ARE REQUESTED TO
BRING THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID FOR INDENTIFICATION FOR

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i)  The voting period will begins on 25"September'2024 and ends on 27'" September’2024
During this period shareholders’ of the Company holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 20" September'2024 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(i) ~ Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020,
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 listed entities are required to provide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it
has heen observed that the participation in e voting process by the public non-institutional

shareholders/retail shareholders are at a negligible level. So Company is requesting to all
shareholders to participate in e voting.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility
to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

.In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation,
it hao boon dooidsd to cnabls Gvoting to all the demat aseount holders, by way of a

Biha]o Ioﬂin erodential, Ehrouﬂh their demat accounts/ bait of D iteries/

Depository Participants. Demat account nolders would be able 1o cast thelr vote without




(W)

having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting
process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories
and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
smail Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of | Login Method
shareholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
page without any further authentication, The URL for users to login to Easi /

Shareholders Easiest arehttps:/iweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit

holding vww.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
securities in

Demat mode 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
with CDSL option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-\oting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that
the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

Individual

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
hitps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can diractly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Votng link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer oron a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to
=Moting” under o-Vating earvicas and you will be able to sea a-Vaoting page,

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

Cliek on company name or e-voling Service provider name and yo




directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) Ifthe useris not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https:/leservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click
at httgs:ﬂeservlces.nsdi,comeecureWebHdeasDirectReg.isg

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https:/fwww.evotina.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-\oting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & vofing during the meeting

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
securities  in on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
demat mode) successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
login through company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
their to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Depository Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-
43,

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat moda with NSDL | can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 980 and 1800 22 44 30
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* (v)  Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
individual shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 18 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
¢. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
8) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual
and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact

Company/RTA.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)
Bank as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to
Details login.

OR Date of ¢ If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company,
Birth please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank
(DOB) details field as mentioned in instruction (v),

(vi)  Aiter entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential,

(viiiy  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
an tho resolutions contained in this Notige,

(iX)  Glick on the EV3N for the relevant £C0mpany Namas an which you choosa to vots.




- (X

(x)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

()

(xwi)

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same
the option “YES/NQ" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK", else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly medify your vote.

Once you "“CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Passwerd & enter the details as prompted
by the system.

Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians -Remote Voting
Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
“Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should

be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After recelving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to
cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at
the email address viz; finance.jalanindustries@gmail.com,if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Phygieal shareholders- please provide necassary detaile like Folio No., Name of
3narcholder, scanncd copy of the 3harc certificalc (front and baock), FAN (colf aticatod
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by

amail to éomla:lny umall lcl.

s A T




2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

2 3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your emailid & mobilelno._“ﬁth.your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting

System, you can write an email to beIpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738
and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-
23058542/43.

Members are hereby informed that there is no outstanding amount of unpaid/unclaimed Dividend
and Share to be transfer to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) constituted by the Gentral
Government under Section 124 & 125 of the Companies Act 2013.

By order of the Board
W
\ Yo G
AVM‘!’:L__H:-—-"""
\o\_= /ifyantika Jalan
N\ 3 irector
= DIN :03333925

Place: Kolkata
Date : The 14" August,2024

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE CONPANIES ACT 2013
ITEM NO. 3

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 7% March,2024 appointed Mr Ranjan Kumar Saraf
as an Indepsndent Director under 149, 150, 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. From 7" March
2024 to 6 March 2029.

The Board considers that the appointment of Mr Ranjan Kumar Saraf as an Independent Director
of the Company would be of immense benefit to the Company. Accordingly, the Board
recommends the passing of resolution for his appointment .Except Mr Ranjan Kumar Saref being
an appointee, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and
their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

ITEN NO. 4

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 7 March,2024 Re-appointed Mr Mrityunjay Jalan
as a Managing Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197, 203 from 1% April 2024 to 31*
March 2029.




The Board considers that the re- appointment of Mr Mrityunjay Jalan as an Managing Director of
the Company would be of inmense benefit to the Company. Accordingly, the Board recommends
the passing of resolution for his appointment. No any other person except Mr Mrityunjay Jalan
being an appointee and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution,




Registered Office:

Tea Estate: Paramount Apartment, Flat 2C Head Office:

Durrung Tea Estate 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar

P.0.: Bindukuri 784 502 Kolkata 700 019 Dibrugarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone; (033) 24757811 / 12 Assam

Assam Email: admin@jalanindustriescom  Phone: (0373) 2302895

Email: durrungteaestate@gmailcom  finance.jalanindustries@gmail.com Email: headoffice@jalanindustries.com

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045
Calendar of Events of AGM to be held on 28.09.2024

! SL | Events Date ]. Remarks |
L_No. e o RS —
{1 Dateof Annual General Meeling (AGM) 28.09.2024

i
2 | Date of completion of dispatch of notice along with 05.09.2024 |
Proxy form to the Shareholders and Stock Exchange

3 Cut off date for sending Notice 16.08.2024
- Cut off date for e Voting (Data File) 20.09.2024
T4 T Voting Start Date at 9.00AM 25.09.2024

5 | EVoting End Date at 5.00PM 27.09.2024

» ' Date of Book Closure - 21.09.2024

) 28.09.2024

7 | Scrutinizer within a period of 48 hours from the date |  30.09.2024
of conclusion of AGM make Scrutinizer report and

i._ | submit to the Chairman :

8 Date of Declaration of resulls along with Scrutinizer 30.09.2024
Report

9 Submit Outcome of the AGM to Stock Exchange 30.09.2024

10 | File u/s 35A of Listing Agreement to Stock Exchange |  30.09.2024
within 48 Hours of AGM |

71T | Place on the Website of the Company and on the | 30.09.2024 T
' | website of Agency immediately after the result is | i
| ! declared by the Chairman. |

i 12 | Payment of Dividend (NECS/ECS/DW) N.A.

{13 " Name of the Scrubinizer with the D {as registered | Pravin Kumar

wilth CDSL) ' Drolia
Entity

i LS 1D:31344

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,

For Durrung Tea Estate Limited.
AVANTIKA Dy dgmudey AUENTIRS
JALAMN Dng: BO4S04 MHTAS #0530

Avantika Jalan

Director

DIN ; 03333925




Registered Office:

Tea Estate: Paramount Apartment, Flat 2C Head Office:

Durrung Tea Estate 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar

P.0.; Bindukuri 784 502 Kolkata 700 019 Dibrugarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone: (033) 24757811 /12 Assam

Assam Email: admin@jalanindustries.com  Phone: (0373) 2302895 -

Email: durrungteaestate@gmail.com financejalanindustries@gmail.com  Email: headoffice@jalanindustries.com

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045
Calendar of Events of AGM to be held on 28.09.2024

r SL Events Date Remarks |
No.
1 Date of Annual General Meeting (AGM) 28.09.2024

5 | Date of completion of dispatch of notice along with | 08.09.2024
Proxy form to the Shareholders and Stock Exchange i

3 Cut off date for sending Notice 16.08.2024 ' ;

Cut off date for e Voting (Data File) ; 20.09.2024 s 1

4 | E Voting Start Date at 9.00AM - 25.09.2024 i

5 E Voting End Date at 5.00PM 27.09.2024 o

6 . | Date of Book Closure 21.092024 | . i
28.09.2024

7 | Scrutinizer within a period of 48 hours from the date 30.09.2024
of conclusion of AGM make Scrutinizer report and

submit to the Chairman . |
8 Date of Declaration of results along with Scrutinizer | 30.09.2024 |
Report I
5[ Submit Outcome of the AGM to Stock Exchange 3009.2024 ]
10 | File u/s 35A of Listing Agreement to Stock Exchange | 30.09.2024 [
within 48 Hours of AGM ;

11 | Place on the Website of the Company and on the 30.09.2024
website of Agency immediately after the result is

declared by the Chairman. !
12 | Payment of Dividend (NECS/ECS/DW) N.A. :
13 | Name of the Scrutinizer with the ID (as registered | Pravin Kumar .
with CDSL) Drolia - i
Entity !
D:31344 | R
Thanking You,
~ Yours faithfully,
For Durrung Tea Est
Avantika Jalan
" Director

DIN : 03333925




FORM NO. MGT - 11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3){ ¢} of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Regd. Off.: PARAMOUNT APARTMENT FLAT NO 2C 2ND FLOOR
25 BALLYGUNGE CIRCULAR ROAD KOLKATA-700019
CIN: L01132WB1981PLC187045

Name of the Member (s):
Registered address:
E-mall id:
Folio Mo / Client ld:
DP ID:
|/We, being the members () ©f wrssseesssseen- ShTES of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. MName:
Address:
E-mail id:
or failing him
2. Name:
Address:
E-mail lds
Signature or failing him
3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Idk:
Signature .

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll} for me us and on my/ our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on
the 28th day of September 2024 at 1.00 p.m, at PARAMOUNT APARTMENT Flat No.2C 2nd Eloor 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Kkolkata-700012
and at any adjornment thereof Inrespect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutions For Against

1 ive, Consider and adopt Audited Account and Report of Board of Directors and Auditors. )
2 |Re-appaintment of Mr Vadakillam 5 Nayar as 8 Director

3 |Appointment of Mr Ranjan Kumar Saraf as an Independent Director
2 | Re- Appointment of Mr Mrityunjay Jalan as a Managing Director

I | |

Signed this day of 2023

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

(Signature of the shareholder)

signature of Proxy holder(s)

Signature of first proxy holder signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less

|than 48 haurs before the commencement of the Meeting,




FORM NO. MGT - 12

L Polling Paper
[Purstant to sectlon 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rufe 21(1)( ) of the C L and ) Rules, 2014]
DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Regd. Off.: PARAMOUNT APARTMENT FLAT NO 2C 2ND FLOOR
25 BALLYGUNGE CIRCULAR ROAD KOLKATA-700019
CIN: LOLL32WEL9BIPLCISTU4S
BALLOT PAPER

|S. MefParticulars Detalls
1. |Meme of the First Named Shareholders

{In black Ietters)

3. |Postal address

3. [Registerad follo Mo./*Clent 1D Ne.

{*Applicable 1o investors helding

shares in dematerialized form)
4, _|Cless of Share

I hereby exerclse my vote in respect of Ordinary | Spacis! resslution enumerated balow by recording my assent or dissent to the sald resolution in the following manner:

Mo, of shares | 1assent to the | | dissent form
Iwu. Illelnlmlons held byme | reselution | the resclution
1, mecelve, Considar and adopt Audited Account and Rapart of Beard of Cirectors and Auditors,
z IM-G):pu'Inlmen:uf Mr Vadakillam 5 Nayar as = Director
3 |Appointment of Mr Renjen Xumar Saraf as an Independent Directer

4 | Re- Agpaintment of bMr Mrityunjay Jalan 25 a Managing Director

Place: Holkata
Date: (Signature of the shareholder)




s - DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Regd. Off. : PARAMOUNT APARTMENT Fiat No2c 2" Floer
e 25 Ballygunge Clreular Road Kolkata — 700019, (West Bangal)
Phone: (91-033) 24757811
E-mail:finance.jalanindustries@gmall.com, GIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045

OATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folic / DP ID & Client ID

| Name and Address of the Sharehold |

1. | being & Member / Proxy for the member(s) of the Company, hereby recard mylour presence at the ANNUL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company being held on Saturday the 26th day of September, 2024 at 1,00 p.m. at Paramount Apartment 2* Floor Flat No-2C, 25 Ballygunge
Circulat Road Kolkata- 70001%

2. Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy Present

3. Shareholder / Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting and handover the same at the entrance
duly signed.

4. Sharsholder / Praxy holder desiring to attend the meeting may bring his / her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting,
Note: PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

[1)EVSN 2) (3) )]
[E-Voting Sequence No.) USER ID. PAN or Relevant No.as under Bank Account No.

{See Mote No.1)

Notes ;
(1) Where Bank Account Number is not registered with the Depositories or Company please enter your User id, as mentioned in column (2) above

(2) Please read he Instructions printed in the Notice dated 14%August,2024 of the Annual General Mesting. The e-Voting period starts from 9 a.m. on
25-.08-2024 and ends at 5.00 p.m. on 27-08-2024. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.




Registered Office:

* Tea Estate; . ParamountApartment, Flat 2C Head Ufﬂcé:_

Durrung Tea Estate 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar
RO Bingdu}mﬁ 784502 Kolkata 700 019 : Dibrugarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone: (033) 24757811 /12 Assam

Assam
Email:

Email: admin@jalanindustries.com  Phone: (0373) 2302}895__- .
durrungteaestate@gmail.com financejalanindustries@gmail.com Emai.l:headoiﬂce@]alamndqstrﬁes.@m

* DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report on the affairs of the
Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2024..

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Financial Results for the year are as under:-

' ’ (In Lakhs) - .
{ PARTICULAR | 2023-24 2022-23

Revenue from operations & otherincome - 1382.39 1659.57

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) (-)151.19 193.09

Less: Interest & Financial expenses 57.75 4544

Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation & Tax (PBDT) (-)208.94 147.65

Less: Depreciation ' - 54.34, 55.48

Profit/(Loss)/before tax : . (-)283.28 92.17

Less: Tax Expense ) R :

. Deferred Tax g {-)2.81 -10.04
Profit/(Loss) for the period after tax (PAT {-) 260.47 102.21

TRANSFER OF RESERVES

The company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve during the financial year
ended 31% March, 2024. '

DIVIDEND

giue to loss incurred by the Company during the year under review, your Directors do not propose any
vidend : g

. PERFORMANGE ~

Production of tea for the year was 623903kgs (from both own and bought leaf) as against
previous year's production of 724715 kgs (from both own and bought leaf) showing an
decrease during the year due climatic condition. '

During the year the prices of teas were steady, However the cost of production increase
substantially thus resulting in unfavorable result for the Company.




' i i ization i hieve. better
mpany continued its program of factory modernization in order to ac
Itr;idg?dspof ¥ea produced. Tr{\}e rgeplant{ng and, infilling continues as per program fo ensure

better yield:
PROSPECT

i i i to improve the crop in
Current year crop is lower than previous year. The Directors expect 1
coming r¥1onth. During the current financial year sales realization are higher than compare to
last year but due to Weather condition may have adverse effect on the current years working.
However, the directors are optimistic about current year's result

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company. :

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The same is not applicable to the Company.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The same is not applicable to the Company as per provision of section 135 of the Companies
Act 2013. :

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

The Company has not invited or accepted bublic depiosits from public covered u/s 73 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014,

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company has appointed new full time Company Secretary under thé category of KMP

during the year under review. The Company have proper composition of Independent
Directors. :

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION
149(6):

The independent Director have submitted the declaration of independence, as requifed
pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, stating that they mest the criteria of
independence as provided in Sub Section (6).

The Independent Director has confirmed and declared that he is not dis-qualified to act as an
Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Section149 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that the Independent Director fuliill all the conditions
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making him eligible to act as independent Director

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management's Discussion and Anal
Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR
forming part of the Annual Report.

ysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section




DISCLOSURE RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES & POLICIES

a) Board Mestings

The Board of Directors met 8 (Eight) times during the financial year ended 31t March,
2024.

The details of Board Meeting, Audit Commitiee Meeting, and Independent Directors are
enclosed herewith as per Annexure C.

b

—_—

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March,2024, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to
the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March,2024 and of the
profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) the Directors have taker proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concermn’ basis;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

- f) all applicable laws and that such systems afe adequate and operating effectively.

c) Audit Committee

The Composition of Audit Committee was as per applicable provision of Companies Act'2013
and as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015.for the financial year ended 31st March’2024. All
the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board, The Audit
Committee has met on 4(Four) times during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

The details of Audit Committee Meeting are enclosed herewith as per Annexure C.

d) Nomination & Remuneration Committaa

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee was as per applicable

provision of Companies Act2013 and as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 for the financial
year ended 31 March'2024,

The Eolicy of the Qumpany for Directors selection, appointment & remuneration, including the
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes independence of Director and other

m:gﬁrsse grovided under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is properly recorded and




e) Vigil Mechanism for the Directors & Employees

in compliance with the provision of Section 177(8) of the CompaniesﬂAct._ 2013 and Regylaslon
22 of tﬁe SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 the Company has framed Whistle Blower Policy” as
vigil Mechanism for Directors & employees of the Company. .

f) Internal Control System

The internal financial control with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no :_"na‘:erlal or
serious observation has been received from the statutory auditors and internal auditors of the
Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

g) Risk Management

The Company has laid down well defined risk management mechanism covering the ﬁ§k
Exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. The Board periodically reviews the
risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properiy
defined frame work.

In line with the new regulatory requirements, the Company has formally framed a Risk
Management Policy to identify and assess the key risk areas, monitor and report compliance
and effectiveness of the policy and procedure.

h) Annual Evaluation of the Directors and Board

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board has formulated a Performance
Evaluation framework under which the Committee has identified criteria upon which every
Director shall be evaluated. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into
Consideration of various aspects of the Board functions, compositions of the Board, culture,
execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and govemance. A separate
exercise was carried out to evaluate the performdnce of the individual directors including the
Chairman of the Board, on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution,
independence of judgment, safeguard the interest of the Company. The performance
evaluation of the Non Independent Directors and the Board as a whole including Committee
thereof was carried out by the Independent Director for the financial year 2023-24,

The Board expressed their satjsfaction with the evaluation process.

i) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i) AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted Auditors' Report on the Flnéncial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. The Statutory

Auditors have drawn your attention towards certain notes attached to the Financial
Statements. :

As regards to non-provision of accumulated gratuity liability amounting to Rs 487.44 Lacs in

accordance with AS-19, the Company is taking steps, but due to paucity of fund the same
could not be deposited during the year.




As regards to Auditors emphasis on going concern the note no 45 is self-expletory

k) SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

2 i e Company had appointed Shri Pravin Kumar Drolia, Practicing
gg%?:ﬁ;dsgig{:g,o;z ?;::T:r‘etarialpAugitor" ofl:;ﬂe Company to conduct Se‘cretarial Audit for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 (1) :_'Jf the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, ;

A Secretarial Audit Report submitted by Mr Pravin Kumar Drolia {Company Secretar_ies) is
annexed here with as "Annexure A”. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark.

l) EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN U/S 82(3)

As provided under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 extract of the Annual Return
prepared in form MGT-9 pursuant to Rule 12(1) the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 is fumnished in “Annexure B” which forms a part of this report.

m) PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTY

All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis and are in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act. There are no material significant related party
transactions made by the Company with promoters, directors or key managerial personnel
ete. which might have potential confiict with the interest of the Company at large.

The details of the transactions with the related parties are provided in the Company's financial
Statement. :

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 is enciosed in “Annexure D” as per Form AQC-2.

n) PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES 'OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
Details of Loans, Guarantees and | nvestments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

o) DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal

;"-“hich can have an impact on the going concern status and the Company's operations in
uture.

p) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The prescribed_ particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption and R & D
activities required U/s 134(3) (m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
Is attached as " Annexure E” and forms part of this Director's Report,

could affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial
year of the Company and the date of this report, '




r) PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has taken proper measure for prevention of “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Worlplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 at work place and factory as well, :

s)FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OQUTGO

Az per Annexure--- E

©» HOLDINGS/ SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associates and did not enter inta any joint venture agreement with
other body corporate and others during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Banks & Financial Institutions, Centrat and
State Government authorities, Regulatory authorities, Stock Exchanges and the stakeholders
for their continued co-operation and support to the Company. Your Directors also wish to
record their appreciation for the continued co-operation and support received from the
employees of the Company,

On behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata M’_};}L M

Date: 30" May, 2024, Mrityunjay Jalan Avantika Jalan
Managing Director  Director
DIN 07259366 DIN 03333925




To,

CS PRVAIN KUMAR DROLIA
(Company Secretary in whole time practice)

13, Selimpur Road, Block: D, Kolkata - 700031
Mobile:09831196869, email: droliapravinl 2@gmail.com

ANNEXTURE “A"

The Members,
DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED,
(CIN: LO1132WB1981PLC197045)
Flat 2C, Paramount Apartment,
25, Ballygunj Circular Road,
olkata — 19
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, I
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion,

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required. I have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

+ The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification
of procedures on test basis,
The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Prvain Kumr Drolia
(Company Secretary in whole time practice}
PRAVIN KUMAR Peraieeatt
DROLIA ?ggj';ﬂmﬂ arss
Pravin Kumar Drolla
Proprietar
FCS: 2366, CP 1362

Place: Kolkata Peer view registration: 1928/2022
Date: 30-05-2024 UDIN:FOD2366F000459174

5|Page
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CS PRVAIN KUMAR DROLIA

(Company Secretary in whole time practice)
13, Selimpur Road, Block: D, Kolkata - 700031
Mabile:0983 1196869, email: droliapravin 2@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st Day of March, 2024
[Pursuant to Section204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RuleNo.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014]

To,

The Members,

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED,
(CIN: L0O1132WB1981PLC197045)
Flat 2C, Paramount Apartment,

25, Ballygunj Circular Road,

Kolkata — 700 019

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Durrung Tea Estate Limited (CIN:
L01132WB1981PLC197045) (hereinafter called "the Company”). The Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thergon.

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained, by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended 31st March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject fo the reporting made

hereinafter

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 according to the
provisicns of;

|. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

1. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;

1Il.The SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations 2018,

IV Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Diract Investment and External Commercial
Borrowing, (Not applicable during the period under audit, as there were no any FEMA
transactions have been taken place during the year under review)

1]Page
PRAVIM KUMAR ZZial oty

DROLIA Date: 20240630
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V. The following Regulations (as amended from time t0 time) and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act):-

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regutatlops.
2015; ( this clause is not applicable as CSE is non-functional exchange and there is no trading
in equity shares of the Company on the Exchange since last more than eight years.)

{c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993)

(d) The SEBI Listing (Listing obligation and disclosure requirements <LODR>) Regulations
2015

[The following Regulations and Guidelines prescrived under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1892 ('SEBI Act') are not applicable to the Company for the above financial
year: -

| The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee benefits and swest
equity) Regulations  2021;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
as amended from time to time; and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 2018;]

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Reguiations, 2018;

V|. The following Industry Specific laws:
a. Tea Act, 1953

b. The Tea Waste (Control) Order, 1858
c. FSSAI Act 2008

d. Payment of Bonus Act

e. Payment of minimum wages Act to Workers

(ES| ACT IS NOT APPLICABLE FOR WORKERS EMPLOYED AT GARDEN OF THE
GOMPANY SITUATED AT ASSAM AS PER STATE GOVT RUES) THE COMPANY DID NOT
RENEW POLLUTION LICENCE AT GARDEN AND TEA MANUFACTURING UNIT FOR THE
ABOVE FINANCIAL YEAR. NO PROPER CLEARNCE OF POLLUTION CONTROL BORAD
HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FOR THE ABOVE FINANCIAL YEAR.

2|Page
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DROLIA Date: 2024.05.30
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| have also examined the following compliance with the applicable clauses of Companies Act
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 :

i. The LODR and listing agresment entered into by the Company with The Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited. As the CSE is non-functional exchange, the Company has
complied with the requirements of the Listing Agreement, LODR and various
Rules and Regulations made under SEBI Act, 1992 and SCRA, 1956 which the
management deems necessary and reasonable. During the year under review, the
Company and its non-independent Directors including Independent Director and
CFO received notice of adjudication of Penalty under section 434 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3(2) of Company (Adjudication of
Penalties) Rules 2014 for contravention of provision of Section 203(1) of the
Companics Act 2013, The Company has appointed during the year under review
all the Key Managerial Personnel as required under section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013, The Company did not maintained the requirements of minimum
public shareholding of 25% of the outstanding share capital. Due to this non-
compliant, Demat account of Directors have been freeze by the CSE.

ii.Regulation 15 of LODR relating to Corporate Governance is not applicable to
the Company during the year under review.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above during the year under
review per applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors, and a Woman Director. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors if any that took place during the
period under review were carried with complying with the provisions of the Act Further
Company is not regular in depositing provident fund with appropriate authorities within
stipulated time and did not adhere to law for payment of Gratuity to its workers on time.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance manually, and proper system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

| further report that there are adequate system and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines as represented by the management. All decisions of the
Board were unanimous and the same was captured and recoded as part of the Minutes,

3 l Page : Digitally sigrod by
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| further report that during the audit period, the Company has not made any:
(i) Public/Right/ Preferential issue of Shares/Debentures/Sweat Equity or any other Security.
(i) Redemption / buy-back of securities.

(i) Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act,
2013,

(iv) Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction etc
(v) Foreign Technical Collaborations.

For Prvain Kumr Drolia
{Company Secretary in whole time practice)

PRAVIN KUMAR Rareise ™
DROLIA l};u;?mmom

Pravin Kumar Drolia

Proprietor

FCS: 2366, CP 1362
Place: Kolkata Peer view registration: 1928/2022
Date: 30-05-2024 UDIN:FO0D2366F000459174

Note:
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.

“rege




EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ende
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 an

Annexure-B

Form No. MGT-9

Administration) Rules, 2014]

L

1L

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
(i) CIN :L01132WB1981PLC197045
(i)  Registration Date:01/07/1981
(iii)  Name of the Company : Durrung Tea Estate Limited (Formerly SPBP TEA (INDIA) LIMITED}
(iv)  Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares
W) Address of the Registered office and contact details:
Paramount Apartment Flat No. 2C
25, Ballygunge Circular Road Kolkata- 700 019
E-Mail: finance jalanindustries@gmail .com
Wehsite durrung.com
(vi)  Whether listed Company: Yes at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:
ABS Consultant Pvt. Ltd.
Stephen House
4, B.B.D. Bag (East)
Kolkata-700 001
Website Address: NIL
Phone: +91 3322431053
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be
Stated:-
Sl. | Name and Description NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No. | of main Product Product the Company
1. | Cultivation, Growing, 01132 100.00%
Manufacturing of Black Tea
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :
[sl. | Name &Address of CIN Holding/ [ %of | Applicable
No. | The Company Subsidiary/ | Shares | Section
Associate | Held
1 | NA

d on March 31, 2024 of Durrung Tea Estate Limited
d rule 12(1) of tl;e Companies (Management and




Iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup As Percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category
of
Shareholders

No. of shares held at the
beginning of the year 01.04.23

No. of shares held at the

end of the year 31.03.24

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Share

Demat

Physical| Total

% of
Total
Share:

Change
during
the
year

A

Promoters

(1) Indian
Individual/HUF
Central Govt.
State Govt.
Bodies Crop.
Banks/Fl
Any other

Sub Total (A)(1)

(2) Foreign
NRIs Individuals
Other individuals
Bodies Corp.
Banks/F1
Any other

Sub Total (A)(2)
Total Shareholding

(4)=(a)(1) +
(A)(2)

236345

700855

937200

937200

236345

700855

937200

937200

100.00

236345

700855

937200

937200

- 236345

- 700855

- 937200

- 937200

2522

74.78

100.00




B.Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds
(b) Public Fin Ins
(c)Central Govt
(d) State Govt.
(e) Venture Cap
(f) Insurance Co.

(g) Flls

(h) Foreign
Venture Cap.
Fund

(i) Others

Sub Total (B)(1)

2. Non [nstitutions
(a) Bodies Crop
(i)Indian

(ii)Overseas
(b) Individuals
(i)Individual
Shareholder
Holding sh
Cap. Upto
Rs. 1lakh
(ii)Individual
Shareholder
Holding sh
Cap.in
Excess of
Rs. 1 lakh
(c) Others-NRI

Sub Total (B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

G,

Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs &ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

937200

237200

100

237200

937Z00

100




(iiy  Shareholding of Promoters

5l. | Shareholder’s Name | Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No. beginning of the year 01.04.23 end of the vear 31.03.24
No.of | % of Yo of MNo.of | %of % of
shares | total Shares shares | total Shares
shares Pledged/ shares | Pledged/
of the Encum ofthe | Encum
Company | -hered Company| -bered
to total to total
sharcs shares
1 Mrityunjay Jalan 5645 0.60 0.60 0.60
2 Avantika Jalan 5700 0.a1 - 5700 0.61 -
3 Mahadeo Jalan 58000 6.19 - 58000 6,19 -
| 4 Sarala Jalan 67000 7.15 - 67000 7.15 -
5 KumKum Jalan 100000 | 1067 - 100000 1067 |-
6 Julan Investments Pvt L{ 163388 | 17.43 - 163388 1743 |-
7 | Narsingdass Surajmall [169627 | 18.10 |- "l 169627 | 1810 | -
Properties Pvt Lid _
8 | Jalan Industries Pyt Ltd|[175290 | 18.70 - 175290 [ 1870 | -
9 {Jalan Holdings PvtLtd 192550 | 20.55 - 192550 | 2055 |-
Total 937200 | 100.00 | - 237200 100.00 | -

(iii) Change In Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is ne change)

SL. Sharehalding at the Cumulatlve Shareholding
No. beginning ofthe year 01.02.23 during the year
No. of ¥ of total Na. of % of total shares
shares | sharesofthe shares | of the Company
Company
At the beginning of the year 937200 100.00 937200 100.00

Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters shareholding during the
Year specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
Transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

Atthe end of the year 937200 100.00 937200 100.00

There is no change in Promoter Shareholding during the year ended 31¢t March 2024 in comparison to last year.

(iv)  Sharcholding pattern of top ten shareholders {other than Directors, Promotears
And Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

S | For Each of the Top 10 shareholders| Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. heginning of the year 01.02.23 during the year

No. of % of total No. of % of total

shares Shares of shares | Sharesof

) the Company the Company

1 _ NIL M.A. NIL N.A.

NIL MN.A. i NIL N.A.

NIL N.A. | NIL MN.A,




V.

Indebtedness of the

[ 1 [ NIL [NA [ NIL [ N.A.
(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sl. | For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. | beginning of the year 01.04.23 | during the year
No. of 9% of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of the
the Company
Company
At the beginning of the year 11345 1.21 nil nil
Date wise increase/decrease in - -
Promoters shareholding during the
Year specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
Transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year 11345 1.21 nil nil
INDEBTEDNESS

Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment:
Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits Total
Excluding Loans Indebtedness (in Lakhs)
deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the
Financial year 01.04.23
(i) Principal Amt. 563.60 812.53 1376.13
(ii) Interest due but 0.62 0.62
Not paid
(ili) Interest accrued
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 564.22 812.53 1376.75
Change in
Indebtedness during
The financial year
- Addition [ Net) 9.09 51.36 60.45
- Reduction (-) 0.07 (-) 0.07
Net Change 9.02 51.36 60.38
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
31.03.24
(i) Principal Amt, 572.69 663.89 1436.58
(ii) Interest due but
Not paid
(iil) Interest accrued 0.55 200.00 0.55
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 573.24 863.89 1437.13




Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and /or Manager:

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total
Amount

Managing Director

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
In section 17(1) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
The Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

12.00 Lakhs

12.00 Lakhs

Stock Option

W

Sweat Equity .

Commission
- As % of Profit
- Others, specify

Others, please specify payment in lieu of P.

-~ 1.44 -

Total (A)

13.44 Lakhs

| Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

S1.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total

Paid during 1.04.23to 31.03.2024

- Amount

1. Independent Directors
-Fee for attending -
Board committee
Meetings -
-Commission -
-Others -

Total (1)

2. Other Non-Executive
Directors -

-Fee for attending
Board committee -
Meetings 5
-Commission -
=0Others

Total (B) = (1) +(2)

Total Managerial
Remuneratian i




VI.

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CFO CEO Total
Amount
1 Gross Salary
(d) Salary as per provisions contained
In section 17(1) of the Income 7.20 Lakhs N.A. T30 Lache
Tax Act, 1961
() Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
The Income Tax Act, 1961
() Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option - : 5
3 Sweat Equity = = o
4 | Commission
- As % of Profit - - =
- Others, specify - - .
5 Others, pl specify - - -
Total 7.20Lakhs N.A. 7.20 Lakhs
PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description Penalties/ [RD/NCLT/ Made,
Companies Punishment/ Court] Ifany
Act Compounding
A.  Company
Penalty u/s 454 (3) Non Appointment of Penalties 5 Lacs RD  1lacs paid
Punishment Section 203(4) Company Secretary
Compounding
B.  Directors
€ ?
Penalty u/s 454 (3) Non Appai of [ 1.7Zon each Directors RD t pai
Punishment Saction 203(4) Company Secretary ’ SR peld
Compounding
D.  Other Dfficer in default
Pl!n?lty u/s 454 (3) Non App of Penalti 1.72lacson CFO RD  Amount paid
Punishment Section 203(4) Company Secretary
Compounding




ANNEXURE-C

Number of Meetings of the Board and Committees thereof

(a) Details of the Meeting of Board of Directors and meetings attended by the directors held
between April’2023 to March’24 are as under:

Board Meetings were held during the year on igh
14" August,23, 14" November,

May,23,30" May,23, 24" July,23,
23 16! December,23,13M February,24, 7" March,24.

[ Name of Member

Meetings held

Number of Meetings attended

Mrs Avantiak Jalan

Mr Mrityunjay Jalan

Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee
Mr V.S.Nayar

Mr Ranjan Kumar Saraf

Co 00 0O 0O @

8

8
8
8
1

(b) Details of the Meeting of Audit Committee and meeting attended by the Committee Members
between April’2023 to March’2024 are as under:

During the year the Committee held four meetings : 30th May,23,14™ August,23,14" November,23,13" February,24

The attendance of the members at these meeting are as under :

[ Name of Members Position Meetings held Number of Meetings attended
Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee Chairman 4 4 '
Mr Mrityunjay Jalan Member 4 4
Mr Avantika Jalan Member 4 4

(c) Details of the Meeting of Independent Directors meeting attended by the Committee Members
between April’2023 to March’2024 are as under:

During the year the Committee held four meetings: 9" March, 24

The attendance of the members at these meeting are as under:

Name of Members Position Meetings held Number of Meetings attende
Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee Chairman 1 1
Mr Ranjan Kumar Saraf Member 1 1




EXURE -

FORM AOC 2
Sl. | Related Party Relationship Description of transaction Balance For the
No. year ended
March 31,2024
(T} in Lakhs
1 Mr.Mrityunjay Jalan Director Directors Remuneration 12,00
2 M/s Jalan Holdings Pvt. Lid. Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 14245
3 M/ s Jalan Industries Pvt. Ltd. Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 177.13
4 | Mr. Mrityunjay Jalan Director Unsecured Loan Taken 39.35
5 | M/s Narsingdass Surajmal Properties | Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 274.40
Pvt. Lid.
6 | M/s Dinjoye Tea Estate Pvt. Ltd. Related Party Advance taken/ (given) (7.00)
7 | M/sJalannagar Development Pvt. Related Party Advance taken/ (given) (75.97)
Ltd.
8 M/s Jalannagar South Estate Pvt Ltd | Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 21.56
9 | M/sJalan Investments Pvt Lid Related Party Advance taken/( given) (255.62)
10 | M/s Jalan Charity Trust Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 209.01




ANNEXURE-E
FORM -A

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:

A, Powerand Fuel Consumption:

Previous Year

i Current year
Fartieular 2023-2024 2022-2023
1.Electricity
a) Purchased (Unit ) 7,05,534 8,49,589
Total Amount (Rs) 79,05,392 80,50,720
Rate/Unit " 11.20 9.48
b) Own Generation
i) Through Diesel Generators
Units produced 1,20,510 67,794
Units per Liter of Diesel 723 _ 6.69
Cost / Unit 1228 13.28
Gy s 1,50,195 1,67975
- (kgs) - 30, ;
ﬂggal Cost 1,30,74,170 1,57,03,124
Average Rate 87.05 96.95 -
Product Made Tea ( Kgs) 6,23,903 7.24,715
Electricity (in Units)/per kg 1.32 1.27
LPG ( in Kg)/per kg 0.24 0.23

FORM -B s
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to Absorption, Research and Development (R&D)

- Specified area in which R& D carried out by the Company.

1
2. Benefits derived as a result of above R & D
3

. Future Plan of action.
4. Expenditureon R&D.
a) CapitalR &D.

b) Recurring.
¢) Total

The company subscribes to
Tea Research Association
which is registered under
Section 35(i)(ii) of the
ncome Tax Act,1961.

d) Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total Turnover

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
1. Effort in brief, made towards technology
Absorption, adaptation, and innovation

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above
Efforts eg product improvement, cost
Reduction, import substitution etc,

Continuous efforts are being made towards
absorption, adaptation, and innovation of
Technology absorption maintaining close
Liaison with advisory officer of Tocklai
Experimental Station. '
Increase in productivity and cost reduction
by optimization of inputs,




Foreign liachange Earning and outgo
1. Foreign Exchanged Earned { F.O.B.}
3 Fareign Exchanged used

Place: Kolkata

Date: 300 May.2{524

Eor and on behalf of the Board of Dire

s

MrityUrjay Jalan

Managing Director
DIN 07259366

il
Nil

clors

e B

Avantika Jalan

Director
DIN 03333925




CS PRAVIN KUMAR DROLIA
(Company Secretary in whole time practice)

Block D, 2™ floor, 13, Selimpur Road, Kolkata - 700031

CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and schedule V para-C clause (10} (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

To

The Members,

Durrung Tea Estate Ltd,

Flat 2C, Paramount Apartment,
25, Ballygunj Circular Road,
Kolkata 700019,

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns produced before me, and disclosures
raceived also from the Directors of M/s Durrung Tea Estate Ltd (CIN: 1L01132WB1981PLC197045) having
registered office at flat 2C, Paramount Apartment, 25, Ballygun] Circular Road, Kolkata 700019 (herein
referred to as ‘the Company”) , for the purpose of issuing this certificate , in accordance with Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
|dentification Number{DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in, as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company and its officers , | hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31% March 2024 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Companies by the SEBI,
MCA or other Statutory Authority as the case may be.

SrNo Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment
1 Sri Mrityunjay Jalan 07259366 14/11/2018

2 Smt Avantika Jalan 03333925 14/11/2018

3 Sri Dwija Das Chatterjee 02183974 31/08/2018

4 Sri Vadakkillarm Satheesan Nayar 07612736 21/01/2019

5 Sri Ranjan Kumar Saraf 10539571 07/03/2024

Cont. on page 2

Digi ioned b
PRAVIN KUMAR St e o oLia
DROLIA Date: 2024.05.30

11:19:20 +05'30'




Page 2

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is responsibility of
the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my
verification. This certificate Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR FRAVIN KUMR DROLIA
{Company Secretary in whole time practice}
PRAVIN KUMAR pranasan orouss
DROLIA ?;:;MM 15:1545
(Pravin Kumar Drolia)
Proprietor
FCS: 2366, CP: 1362
Place: Kolkata ' Peer review registration: 1928/2022
Date; 30-05-2024 UDIN: FOD2366F000459451




V.SINGHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Four Mangoe Lane

Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani,
Ground Floor, Kolkata — 700 001
Phone : +91 33 2210 1125/26
E-mail : kolkata@vsinghi.com

Website : www.vsinghi.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Durrung Tea Estate Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Durrung Tea Estate Limited (“the
Company”), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2024, its loss (including Other Compréhensive Income), the changes in Equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We would like to draw your attention to the following:

We draw attention to Note No. 33 regarding non provision of liability on account of terminal
benefits (gratuity) in accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employees Benefit” amounting to Rs. 497.44
Lakhs including Rs, 57.62 Lakhs for the current year, in the financial statements, constituting a
departure from the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed in section 133 of the Act, thereby
the provisions and loss remaining understated, and retained earnings being overstated by Rs.
497.44 Lakhs.

We conducted our audit of Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
saction of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics i1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the

-athical requiremeants that ara ralavant to eur audit of the Financlal 8tatements undar the

provisions of the Act and the Rules mave thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other ethical
responsikilities in aceordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe

Offices : BENGALURU o DELH| » GUWAHATI » HYDERABAD s MUMBAI » RANCH| | @4‘/




that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
_our gualified opinion on the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matters

a. We draw attention to Note No. 43 regarding balances of Trade Recelvables, Other
Receivables, Advances, Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities being subject to
confirmation by the parties and which include some old items pending reconciliation. '

b. We draw attention to Note No. 45 regarding going concern assumpt:on adopted by the
management.
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate oplnion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for D.uallﬁed Opinion Section, we have :
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

Our report:

Sl | Key Audit Matters
No.

Response to Key Audit Matters

-

1. | Property, Plant and Equipment

There are areas where management
Judgment impacts the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and their respective
depreciation rates. These include the
decision to capitalise or expense costs;
the annual asset life review; the
timeliness of the capitalization of
assets and the use of management
assumptions and estimates fer the
determihation or the measurement
and recognition criteria for assets
retired from active use. Due to the
materiality in the context of the
Balance Sheet of the Company and the
level of judgment and estimates
required, we consider this to be an
area of significance.

We assessed the controls in place over the
fixed asset cycle, evaluated the
appropriateness of capitalization process,
performed tests of details on costs
capitalized, the timeliness of the
capitalization of the assets and the de-
recognition criteria for assets retired from
active use. In performing these procedures,
we reviewed the judgments made by
management including the nature of
underlying costs capitalized; determination of
realizable value of the assets retired from
active use; the appropriateness of asset lives
applied in the calculation of depreciation; the
useful lives of assets prescribed in Schedule II
of the Act and the useful lives of certain ascets
as per the technical assessment, We observed
that the management has regularly reviewed
the aforesald judgments and there are r;o
material ehanges. »




2. | Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is involved in various | Our audit-procedure in response to this key
taxes and other disputes for which | Audit Matter included, among others,
final outcomes cannot be easily

redicted and which could potentially )
fesu{t in significant liabilities. The | ® Assessment of the process and relevant

assessment of the risks associated with controls imp]le@er:lted o iddentify I:igal
the litigations is based on complex and tax litigations, and pending

assumptions, which require the use of administrative prnceedin:tgs. )
judgment and such judgments relate, | © Assessment of assumptions used in the

primarily, to the assessment of the evaluation of potential legal and tax risks
! i

uncertainties connected to the performed by the Company considering
prediction of the outcome of the the legal precedence and other ruhngs in
proceedings and to the adequacy of similar cases.

the disclosures in the financial| ® Inquiry by management regarding the
statements. Because of the judgments status of the most significant disputes
required, the materiality of such and inspection of the key relevant
litigations and the complexity of the documentation.

assessment process, the area was a| ® Analysis of opinion received from the
key matter for our audit. experts where available.

e Review of the adequacy of the disclosures
in the notes to the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other informatibn.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our Auditor [
Report thereon. %

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover thie other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it became available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit, or otharwise appeare to ba materially misstated.

If, we conclude, based on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior
to the date of this Auditor's Report, that there is a material misstatement of this other

information; we are required to report that fact. However, we have nothing to report in th:s
regard.

Responsibilities of Managament and Thosa Chargetl wlth Gevernance for the Fmam;ial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that giva a true and fair view

o

L




of the financial positlon, financial performance, including total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting recards in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection dnd
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process. '

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
Auditor's Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on th’e basls of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audlt in accordance with SAs, we exercise professnona] judgment and mamtam
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: :

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statemenis,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

@ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3){i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company

has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
. of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonab[eness -of
accounting ectimates and ralated diselasures made by management. ‘

L.




Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in
the Financial Statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Companv to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentatlon structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the dIscIosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
4

We also provide those charged: with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significanee in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said
Order, to the extent applicable.

2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of

our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes Df our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have heen kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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or!

¢) ¢

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

subject to the matter specified in qualified opinion section of our report, in our opinion,
the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31° March,
2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 315t March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reportjng
of the Company and the operatlng effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, the Company has complied with
the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, relating to managerial
remuneration; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Audltors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: '

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Financial Statements. Refer Note 31 to the Financial Statements;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

there were no amounts due which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly fend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been

W




!
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
!
vi) Based on our examination, including test checks, the company has utilized accounting
software with an audit trail (edit log) feature for maintaining its books of account, which
has been consistently operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions. During
our audit, we did not find any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per statutory requirements
for record retention. :

For V. Singhi & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 311017E

B e

. (NAVEEN TAPARIA)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 30t May, 2024 Membership No. 058433

UDIN: 24058433BKFCFD2776




Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph-1 an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of E}ren
date to the members of Durrung Tea Estate Limited on the Financial Statements for the year

ended 31°* March, 2024:
i. Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets; . '

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, Property, Plant and
Equipment have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and the same has been
properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Title Deeds of inmovable properties as
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

d) As explained to us, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipmen'i;. or
intangible assets or both during the year.

- &) According to the information and explandtions given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. '

ii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of
inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and, in
our opinion and to the best of our knowledge, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. '

As explained to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physi.ca!
inventories and book records were not material in relation to the operations of the
Company and the same have been properly dealt with in the hosks of account.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the periodical
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the
books of account of the company, '

lli. @) During the year the company has not made investments in or provided a.ny
guarantee or security to companies. However, the company has granted loans or
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advances in the nature of unsecured loans to companies other than subsidiary,
associate or joint venture as under: ;

Particulars Loans (Amount in Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year 525.61

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date | 338.59

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are unable to comment whether the terms and
conditions of all loans or advances granted in the nature of loans are prejudicial or not
to the company's interest, ¢

€) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given, these are
repayable on demand. g

d) In view of clause (iil) (c) and according to information and explanations given to us,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at balance sheet date.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination, there has not been any renewal, extension or fresh loans to settle the
over dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans and
advances repayable on demand as follcws:; : :

’T'articulars Related Parties -

{Amount in
Lakhs)

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand 338.59
Total 338.59
Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total loans 64.79%

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or
loans given, guarantees provided. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public*nor accepted any amount which are deemed
deposits within the meaning sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the Rules made
thereunder to the extent applicable, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{v) of the order
is not applicable.
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vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1) of Section 148 of
the Act, in respect of activities carried out by the company. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable.

vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
applicable statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and there are no undisputed amount payable in respect of the
same which were in arrears as on 31st March, 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date the same became payable, except the following:

{Rs.in Lakhs)
Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to | Due Date Date of
statute the dues which  the Payment

amount
relates

The Assam | Green Leaf| 7.92 July 2018 —| 15 October, | Not  yet
Taxation (on | Cess September 2018 paid
specified 2018
Lands) Act,
1990 .
The Provident 1.23 April  2020- | 15%" of the | Not ‘yet
Provident Fund March 2021 | following paid
Fund Act, 1 Month '
1952
The Provident 26.93 April  2022- | 15t of the | Not vyet
Provident Fund March 2023 | following paid
Fund  Act, Month E
1952
The Provident 93.16 April  2023- | 15%" of the |Not .yet
Provident Fund September | following paid
Fund Act, 2023 Month
1952

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
deposited the following dues on account of dispute with the appropriate authority:

{Rs.in Lakhs)
Name of Patod to Forum where
the Nature of Dues | Amount whikch e dispute is | Remarks
Statute o di
‘relates pending :
Income Income Tax 2.69 AY.2020-21 | Commissioner | Date of filing
Tax  Act, of Income-tax | of appeal: -

1961 .| Appeals, Kol-1 | 06/01/2022
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Income Income Tax 13.39 A.Y.2019-20 | Commissioner | Date of filing
Tax Act, ' of Income-tax | of appeal —
1961 i Appeals, Kol-2 | 08/10/2020
Income Income Tax 18.13 AY.2016-17 | Commissioner | Date of filing
Tax Act, of Income-tax | of appeal -
1961 Appeals, Kol-2 | 25/02/2021
Income Income Tax 5.38 AY.2014-15 | Deputy Letter
Tax Act, Commissioner | submitted u/s
1961 of Income | 154 on
Tax, Circle | 25.09.2019
4(2), Kol
Income Income Tax 25.58 AY. 2013-14 | Commissioner | Date of filing
Tax Act, of Income-tax | of appeal -
1961 Appeals, Kol-2 | 21/02/2020 &
submission of
response on
11.03.2021

viii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the books and records, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. a) The Company has defaulted in payment of dues to Banks. The list of such defaults is as

under :-
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Mntura 2 of Arount Whether No of day?‘
borrowing Name of | not paid ol Due Dat del e
including debt | Lender due | P rtnclpa e u: av_ d
securities date " pal
Working Capital | Punjab Principal
Term Loan National Bank | 272 and Interest | 31°03-2¢ (30
Working Capital | Punjab Principal '
Term Loan 1.0 National Bank ay and Interest siomes |80

b

—

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been

declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any lender.

¢) In our opinion and based on information and explanations given to us by the
management, the company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(xi) (c) of the order is not applicable,

d

-—

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedure

performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial statement of the
company, we report that no fund raised on short term basis has been used for long term
purpose by the company.
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e) In our opinion and based on examinations of the book of records, the company does not
have any subsidiaries or joint ventures. The company has one associate, however the
company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its associate. '

f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsid iaries, associate and
joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the books and records, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore
clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company. &

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books and records, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

b

—_

Xi. During the course of our examinations of the books and records of the company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit nor we have been informed of any such cases by the management.

. Accordingly, clause 3 {xi) (a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

Xii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Ni_dhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) (a) to (c) of the Order s riot applicable.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinat"ion
of the books and records, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in Note No. 36 of the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards. ' :

t

Xiv. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with

the size and the nature of its business. '

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the

company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures,

xv.  Accordingto the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the books and records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions

with directors or persons connected with them during the year. Accordingly, clause 3
(xv) of the Order is not applicahle.

98




Xvi. a)

xvii.

XiX.

b)

c)

d)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, provision of the clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable. :

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly
reporiing under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination, the company has incurred cash loss in current year of Rs. 210.75 Lakhs and
has not incurred cash loss in the immediately preceding financial year.

)

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly,
provisions of Clause 3(xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company.

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audlt
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due for payment.
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xx. According to the information and explanations given to us by the company and
examination of the books and records, the company does not fall under the criteria to
spend any sum of money for CSR activity as per section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

' For V. Singhi & ASSOCIATES
-‘? Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 311017E

L (NAVEEN TAPARIA)
Place: Kolkata : Partner
Date: 30 May, 2024 S Membership No. 058433

. UDIN: 24058433BKFCFD2776




Annéxure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph-2(f) on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of
even date to the members of Durrung Tea Estate Limited on the Financial Statements for the

year ended 31% March, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Durrung Tea Estate
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31% March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finandial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

&

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion oh the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effactiveness of internal conirol
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statemen'ts,
whether due to fraud or error,




i)
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pmwcje a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting. ;

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of :the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate, ' :

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March, 2024, except as reported under Basis for Qualified
Opinion and under Emphasis of Matter, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal conirol
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 311017E

. Al
{NAVEEN TAPARIA) :
Place: Kolkata Partner .

Date: 301 May, 2024 Membership No. 058433
UDIN: 24058433BKFCFD2776 °
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! \ DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

i BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024
3 A . (Amount In Lokhs)
~ MNate As at Asat
. No 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3a 83537 &08.41
(b} Goodwill 3b 225 22,53
{c) Other Intangible Assets 3b 0.18 018
[d) Financial Assets
) nvestrments 4 0.00 0.00
{ii} Other Financial Assets 5 16.80 19,89
(e} Other hon-Curvent Assats B 458 328
Total Non - Current Assets 88251 854,39
Current Assets
(3} Inventorles 7 146.15 18147
{b) Blological Assets other than Bearer Plants ] 605 218
{c) Financlal Assets
) Trade Recelvables -] 14.28 2534
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 15.42 1502
(i) Other Financial Assets 11 52263 : 52238
{d) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 86.52 60.33
() Other Current Assats i3 66.08 242.89
Total Current Assets 857.13 1,049.62
Total Assets 1,739,684 a 1,903.91
EQUITYANDLIABILITIES
Equity %
{a} Equity Share Cagital 14 83.72 93,72
{b) Other Equity 15 1293.04) {32.57)
Total Equity (193.33) 6115
Liskilities
Non-Current Ligbllities
(a) Financial Uiabllities
Borrowings 15 3431 66,75
(b} Deferved Tax Liabilities ) 17 17.37 2018
Total Non- Current Liabilities SLEE 8693
Current Liabillties
(a) Financial Liabilities ~
(i} Borrowings 18 140227 1300.38
() Trade Payables 19
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small 870
Enterprises 727
Total cutstanding dues of cruditors other than
Micro and Smell Enterprises 136,75 13228
(i) Other Financial Usbilities 20 70.63 : 67.95
{b] Qther Current Liabilities 21 226,27 20186
{€) Provislons n 44.09 3,66
Total Current Liabiliies 3,887.28 1,755.83
Total Equity and Uabilities 1.739.60 1,903.91
Corporate Information and Material Accounting Pollicles 1&2
The accompanying notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of the financlal statements
A5 per ouf repart annexed Faor and on behalf of the Board
For ¥ Singhl & Associates
Ehartered Acgountants

Firm Regn. Now 311017

Nose TR o SO e ®

([Naveen Taparla) Mirlbyenjay falan Avantiko Jolan
Partner Panoging Blractor Director
Membarship Mo.; 058433 DIN : 07258365 DiN; 03833325
Place: Ralkats

[

Date:  30th May, 2028 ’ = ! Iﬁp A =
. divendra Sharma MH/’

Comnpany Secretany . Chiaf Financial Officer
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DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

Income:
Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Income (1+ 1)

Expenses:

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
Purchases (Trading)

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses
Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional items and Tax (II-1v)

Tax Expense
Current tax
Deferred Tax

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI)

Other Comprehensive Income

item that will not be reclossified to profit or loss
Income Tax on above

Other Comprahensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Vil-Vill)

Earnings per Equity Share (Nominal value Rs. 10/- each)
Basic
Diluted

Corporate Infe ion and Material A

ing Palicies

The accompanying notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report annexed
For V Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 311017E

(Naveen Taparia)
Partner
Membership Mo.: 058433

Placa: Kalkata
Date : 30th May, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)
Nots: For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
¢ March, 2024 March, 2023
Rs. RS«
23 1,280.12 1,545.71
24 102.27 113.86
1,382.35 1,659.57
25 325 4219
26 = 7.22
26 35.74 (23.32)
27 1,058.53 968.13
28 57.75 45.44
3 54,34 5548
29 436.06 472.26
1,645.67 1,567.40
(263.28) 92.17
{2.81) (10.04)
(260.47) 102.21
E] - -
(260.47) 102,21
(27.79) 10,91
(27.79) 10.91
182
For and on behalf of the Board

At LA

Mrityunjay Jatan
Managing Director
DIN : 07259366

Jitemdra Sharma
Company Sacretary

Gud—

: Gyer

Avantika Jalan .
Director

DIN; 03333925

"

W. g
B el

Chlef Financial Officer




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

y {Amount In Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
A. Cash Flow from Operating Actlvities : .
Net Profit/(Lass) before tax (263.28) 92.17
Adjustments for : h
Depreclation and Amortlsation Expense 54.34 55.48
Interest Pald 57,75 45.44
Changes in fair value of Biological Assets . (3.87) 2.26
Profit on sale of Vehicle L= 108.22 (1.87) 101.31
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Waorking Capital Changes (155.085) 193.48
Adjustments For Changes in Working Capital :
(Increase)/Decrease Trade & Othar Recelvables 185,38 {148.87)
{Incr: / I le: E 3532 (2257}
Increase/(Decrease|Trade & Other Payables 3856 260.25 11031 (61.13}
Net Cash Flow/(Outflow) Before Tax : 105.20 + 13235
Tax Refund / (Paid) (26.20) 19.56)
Net Cash Inflow/{Outflow) from Operating Acitivitias (A) 79.00 122.79
B. Cash Flow from Investing Actlvities + =
e Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {81.30) (9.96}
Sales proceeds from Vehicle - 261
Net Cash Inflow/{Outfiow) Investing Activities (B) 81.30 |7.35]
C. Cash Flow from Financial Activities : ; .
Increase In long term Borrowings {32.44) (38.64)
pay of Short term g 92.89 {19.45)
Interest Pald {57.75) " {45.44)
Wet Cash Inflow/{Outflow) Financing Activities (C} 2.70 {103.52)
Met Increase/(Decrease] in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A + B+C) 0.40 1192
Cash & Cash Equivalents Opening Balance s - 15.02 3.10
Cash & Cash Equivalents Closing Balance : 1542 15.02
Cash & Cash Equivalents consists of : v .
Cash In hand 15.02 14.02
Balances with Bank A 0.40 -
Cheque In Hand : ) - 1.00
. 1542 . 15.02
MNOTE : Figures in bracket represent outflow, .
(3) The above Cash Fiow Statement should be read in conjuction with the accompaying notes.
- {B) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the ind AS - 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.
(€} Previous years figures have been regrouped)/! i wh found ¥
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
As per our report annexad : :
For V Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants e
Firm Regn, No.: 311017 . ) . 6‘ ,J‘w""
L b =
Mrityunjay Jalan Avantika Jalan
(Navaen Taparia) Menaging Director Director
Partner g DIN : 07259566 DIN: 03333925
Membership No.: 058433 . "

Place: Kolkata : .
Date: 30th May, 2024 . %M/l"‘“
Jitendra Sharma D, Maheshwari
Company Secretary Chief Financlal Officer




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Statement of Change In Equity

{Amount in Lakhs)
A Equity Share Capital
Balance at the Changes in Equity
Balance at the end of
beginning of the | Share Capital due to the reporting period
reporting perlod | prior period errors
1) Current Reporting Period 93.72 - $3.72
2} Previous Re_gg&ing Period 83.72 - 93.72
Other Equity
Reserve and Surplus Other Reserves
Other items of Other
Paetictiaes General Reserve | Retained Earnings Capital Reserve Comprehensive Income - Total
FVOCI Equity Instr t:
Balances as at 1st April, 2022 169.77 (311,10 2832 (21.76) (124.77)
Profit/{Loss) for the year [ 102.21 - - 102.21
Balances as at 31st March, 2023 169.77 {208.90) 28.32 (21.76) (32.57)
|Balances as at 1st April, 2023 169.77 (208,50) 28.32 (21.76) (32.57)
fit/(Loss) for the year - {260.47) - C- (260.47)
[salanoas as at 31st March, 2024 169.77 (469.37) 28,32 (21.76) (293.04)

For V Singhi & Associates
Chariered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 311017E

(Naveen Taparia)
Partner -
Membership Mo.: 058433

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th May, 2024

b\la—mﬁ@w ) \Q"%/

Managing Director
DIN : 07259366

Jitendra Sharma
Company Secretary

Avantika Jalan
Director
DIN: 03333925

D. Maheshwarl

Chief Financlal Officer
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DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023

NOTE-4

NON-CURRENT INVESTIVIENTS
Equity Investments Designated at FVOCI
Investments in Equity Instruments - Others

Ungquoted
24,000 (31st March, 2023: 24,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully
paid up in Wearit Global Limited* 0.00 0.00
Total Carrying Value 0.00 0.00
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 0.00 0.00
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -
* Fair vafue based on Financial Statements of FY 2021-22.
* Amount is below the rounding aff norms adopted by the company.
NOTE-5
OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Unsecured, considered good by the management)
Security and Other Deposits (as confirmed by management)
NABARD Deposit 0.02 0.02
Assam Electricity Board (Interest Bearing) 19.87 19.87
19.89 19.89
NOTE- 6
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{Unsecured, considered good by management)
Deposits (as confirmed by management)
Government Authorities } 0.23 0.23
Other Deposits - 4,31 3.05
- 4,54 3.28
.. MOTE-7 : A
INVENTORIES
{As taken, valued and certified by the management)
a) Raw Material (Green Leaves-At Fair Markeét Value) - 0.69 161
b) Finished Goods (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Tea 22.29 58,03
<) Stores and Spare Parts (AL cost)* t 123.17 121.84
146,15 18147
NOTE-8
BIDLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS
(As taken, valued and certified by the management)
Falr Value of Biological Assete Other than Bearer Plants P 6.05 2.18
(Tea Leqves ready to be Plucked)
’ b.05




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
- MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2024 2023
NOTE-8
TRADE RECEIVABLES d
Trade r bl idered good -1 i Refer Note 9(a), 14.28 25.34
14328 anes
9(a) |Aging as on 31st March, 2024 Outstanding as on 31.03.2024 for following periods from due date
Particulars Less than 6 months | 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade recelvables considered good . - 248 599 - - : 8.47
Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - : 581 5.81
Disputed Trade Receivebles — credit impalred - - A - - =
TOTAL - 248 5.99 - 3 5.81 14.28
9(b) as on 31st March, 2023 Outstanding as on 31.03.2023 for following periods from due date
i Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mora than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade recelvables considered good 19.38 0.15 . 19.53
Disputed Trade Recelvables— considered good v - o 5.81 - 5.81
Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired = B - E - - ]
TOTAL 19.38 - 0.15 5.81 - 25.34 |
NO™ 10 :
CAL __.ND CASH EQUIVALENTS o
Balances with Scheduled Banks
In Current Accounts : 0.40 =
Cash in hand (As certified by the managemaent) ] 15.02 14.02
Tox deducted at Source of Rs.1.04 lakhs on Cash withdrowals {Previous Year Rs 9.54 lakhs)
Cheques In hand i - 1.00
NOTE-11
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
¢ . good by the B |
Advances to Body Corporate (as confirmed by management) .
- From Related Partles (Note 35) “ 338.59 15835
- From Others . 184.04 364.04
522.63 522.38
* Amount paid due to enhuncement In the rate of land revenue and against which acase is pending with Guwahati High Court.
NOTE-12
CURRENT TAX ASSETS { NET)
Advance payment of Income Tax i B6.52 60,33
Net of provisions Rs, M (Previous Year s, 7.71 lakhs) t
B6.52 60.33
{ —_— —=
NO'.. 13
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 2 F
U i idered good by the
Subsidy Receivable {as confl i by tha ) - 16.46 16.46
Advance to Suppliers 5.39 183.61
Advance to Employess 6.09 301
Prepaiel Expenses 1.16 167
Bal, with Statutory Authorith 26,99 32,69
Other Receivables - 9.98 5.44
66.08 24289
: \?j Q‘
1
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DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
* MOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL ST.M‘EMEI?]TS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)
’ As at 31t March, 2024 As at 33t March, 2023
NOTE- 14 A T
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorised .
10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100.00 100.00
b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up 7
8,237,200 (31.03.2022; 9,37,200) Equity Sharesof Rs. 10/~ = ° 0272
each fully Pald Up I
€) Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beglinning and at the end of the year
flos Amount Nos Amount
£,37,200 9372| 9372001 6373
9,37,200 §372] 937200 5372

d) The sharshelders have the right to declare and approve dividends, as proposed by the Board of Directors for any financlal year,
to be paid to the members according to thelr rights and Interest in the profits. | -, no larger dividend shall be declared
than Is recommended by the Board of Directors. _'

e) Each holder of Equity Shares Is entitied to one vote per share.

I Inthe event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitied to recelve any of the remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In proportlon to the number of Equity Shares

held by the shareholders.
g) Details of the Shareholders holding mare than 5% Shares In the Company
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Name of Shareholders M :f els:ures si:l: Ry o'::':ares "::::'
held _____ Holding ____ held __ Holding _ .
Mr. Mehaden Jalan 5E,000 6.19% 58,000 6.19%
Mrs. Sarala Jalan 67,000 7.15% 67,000 7.15%
Mrs, Kumkum Jalan 1,00,000 10.67% 1,00,000 10,673
lalans Investments Privata Limited 1,63,388 1743% 1,63,388 17.43%
Narsingdass Surajmal Propertles Private Limited 1,69,627 18.10% 1,69,627 18.10%
lalan Industries Private Limited 1,75,290 18.70% 1,75,250 18.70%
Jalan Holdings Private Limjted 1,92,550 - 2055%  1,92,550 2055%
As per recerds of the Company, Including Its register of sharsholders/s bers and other dec received from the
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,
k)  Datalls of 's St gls as under
<. No. of shares|% of total shares|3 change|
oy Pramater's Name : held as on 31stias on 31st Marchiduring  the,
arch 2024 2034 year
1 |Mrityunjay Jatan : i3 5,645.00 0.60% -
2 [Avantika Jalan ’ _ '5,700.00 0.61% -
3 |Mahadeo Jalan E E%O{w.ﬂﬂ 6.18% -
4 |Sarala Jalan '.67,000.00 7.45% -
:5 |Kumkum Jalan 1,00,000.00 10.67% -
6 |Jalans Investments Private Limited 1,63,388.00 17.43% -
7 |Narsingdass Suralmall Properties Private Limited | 1,69,627.00 18,10% -
8 | Jalan Industries Private Limited 75,290.00 18.70% -
39 | Jalan Hodings Frivate Limited ,63,550,00 20.55% -
= TOTAL 9,37,200.00 100.00% -
No. of shares|% of totel shares|%  change
8l held 85 on 31st|as on 31st March|during  the|
Pramataor’s Mam,
No, : March2023  |2023 vear
1 |Mﬁ§£@ja!.lghn 5,645.00 | 0.60% -
2 | Avansiba Jalan QWULUO u.oln n
3 |Mahadeo Jalan . 2 m_ﬁﬁ L]
% |Sarala lalan 67,000.00 7.45% -
n igoooonn | i6.£7 =
1,63,288.00 c47.480 -~
EVENT I atil 0 =
1,75,280.00 1B.70% -
1.82,580.00 I0 558 =
0,37,300.00 108.00%




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023
NOTE - 15 %
OTHER EQUITY
Reserve and Surplus
a) General Reserve
As per last Financial Statement 169.77 169.77
b) Retained Earnings _
As per last Financial Statement (208.90) (311.10)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period as per the Statement of Profit
and Loss {260.47) (469.37) 102.21 {208.90)
L (299.59) (39.12)
") Capital Reserve : :
"~ As per last Financial Statement ' 28.32 28.32
d) Other Comprehensive Income on Equity Instrument ;
As per last Financial Statement (21.76) (21.76)
) !293.04! {32.57!
NOTE - 16
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES :
SECURED- _ .
Working Capital Term Loans:
GECL Loan (Refer Note 18) 10.78 42.861
Less: Repayable within one year * 10.78 32.333
GECL Loan 1.0 (Refer Note 18) 57.78 £ 65.25
. Less: Repayable within one year * 23.47 9.03
- : 34.31 6675

Security Clause
Secured by way of hypothecation of entire current assets both present and collectively secured by way Df charge on

Company's Durrung Tea Estate and personal guarantee of Sri Mrityunjay Jalan and corporate guarantee of
Jalannagar Development Private Limited. The additional WCTL or non-fund based facility granted under ECLGS shall

rank second charge with the existing credit facilities in terms of cash flows (including repayments} and securities,
with charge on the assets financed under the scheme. Facility under the scheme is secured through Guarantee
coverage from NCGTC.

¥Terms of Repayment

The GECL term loan was repayabla in 22 monthly instalments being out of which 12 monthly installments have
been paid as of 31st March, 2023 and the remaining 14 monthly instaliments of Rs. 2.69 Lakhs each are payable by
June, 2024. The GECL 1.0 loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments out of which 31 installments of Rs. 1.8, Lakhs
each are payable by October, 2026.

Vi




NOTE- 17

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Nat)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Mat Credit Entitlerment-Account

NOTE-18
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt
Cash Credit Facilities from Punjah National Bank*
Vehicle Loan from a Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd [Refer Note Below] **

UNSECURED
{Repayable on demand}
From a Director (Mon-interest Bearing)
From Body Corporates
-From Related Parties
-From Related Parties (Non- Interest Bearing)

Nature of Securlty

"mcmmmmmmnmwm&nmdbyﬁmrqmmwdmd&wrﬂm fi
Furniture & Fixtures and Vehicles of the Company and fypothecotion/ charge over éntie Stocks, Book Debts ond olf other Current Assets qrﬂle Camprmy, bath ,ures!ntmd'
Juture and personal guarantees af Mr. Mﬁ!wnjnyinm DJ‘mrinr of the Company. The above loan Is further secured by second of i

Put, Ltd. The sold securities have also been extended to secure the GECL Loan.

movable ossets and Corporate

of Jals
**The above loan is sccunbd against Hypotheciation of the \I'eh]de

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 515T MARCH, 2024

i

i (Amount in Lakhs]
Az at 31st March, 2024 nsat!!smhwh‘, 2023
¥ 25.40 26.21
{8.03) (8.03)
17.37 20.18
3425 4136
503,27 452.19
086 330
3935 4.85
200,01 4
615.53 807.58
140227 1,305.38
} and hypothecation of Plant &

le and

NOTE - 19
TRADE PAYABLES
Paybles for goods and Services™
Totail outstanding dues of micra and small enterprises 7.27 4.70
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 136.75 s
1402, FET
Aging as on 315t March, 2024 Outstanding as on 31.03.2024 for following periods fram due date of payment
Particulars | Years | 2-3years | More than 3 Years Total
MSME _~ ¥ 55 - . 7.27
Others 431 .65 136.75
| Tatal 431 4.65 144.02
Aging as on 31st March, 2023 Outstanding as on 31.03.2023 for fol eriods from due date of pa:
Particulars Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Years | 2.3 vears ﬁﬁsinﬁ Total
MSIME 4.0 & g g 278
Others 10639 1345 10.98 145 132.28
Total 111.09 1345] 1088 1.5 136,98 |
* On the basis of information provided by the management
NOTE - 20
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Intarast accrued and due on secured loans from Bank 0.55 062
Employes Bengfit Payable 48.07 44,62
Expense Payables 22.01 22,70
7068 6795
NOTE-21
OTHER cuRRCNT LABLITIES
Balances with Scheduled Banks  «
In Current Accounts - 477
{Temparary book overdrawn balances) j
Advance from Customers 178 283
Advance from Dilu Deb 5.50 = 5.50
FoyeRls 1@ JRRUREry AUINOTINGS = 218,99 18876
. 226,27 201,88
fnCiues Tox DeduCted ot SOurce, Leose Rent to Assam Gow, Profession Tox and PIOWM Fund and Others
NOTE .22 E
PROVISIONS 52
Frovicion for Bonue 44.00 9,56
44.00 39.66




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED ‘ K
MOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMMIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

3 {Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 -
NOTE-23 i
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS i
Sale of Products -Tea . 127157 1,537.18
Sale of Stock-in-Trade - 853
Sale of Tea plants B.55 -
1,280.12 2 1,545.71
NOTE - 23 ; i,
OTHER INCOME . :
Subsidy® . 100.05 -
Compensation Against Land . : 110.76
Rental Income ' 0.80 - 0.60
Profit on sale of vehicle - 1.87
Interest on Income Tax refund 0.87 0.60 |
Miscellaneous Income . - 0.03 °
Sundry Balance Written Back 0.75 ' 1
102.27 113.86
1 ———

*During the year, the Company received subsidy from Assam Tourism Development Corporation Limited for promotion and
development of Tea Tourism in Assam, The total amount of subsidy recelvable is 50% of the project proposal costs which has
been restricted to Rs. 333.50 Lakhs. Accordingly, the company has received subsidy of Rs, 100.05 Lakhs during the year,

MOTE - 25 *
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
(As certifiad by the management) r '
Green Leaf Purchased (100% Indigenous) 3,25 42,19
¢ 3.25 42.19
NOTE - 26 i —
= PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE -
Tea u 7.22
- 7.22
NOTE - 27 ;
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED G00DS ’
Finished Goods ;
Opening Stack 58,03 3471
Less: Closing Stock 22,29 58.03
35.74 (23.32)
NOTE - 28
. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages* BOH.96 827.40
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 91.08 80,76
Staffand Labour Welfare Expenses 68.49 59.96

1,086.53 968,13
*includes Remuneration ta a Whole time Director Rs, 13.2 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 9 Lokhs)




DURARUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

oF

THE YEAR ENDED J15T [ARCH, 2024

famagunt in Lakhs]
For the year ended Far the year ended
_ Blstiiarch 2033
NOTE- 29
FINANCE COSTS
‘To Banks
Oin Cash Crodit 4385 258
O Tarm Lean B35 .85
On CorLloan 0.18 5238 Hg 40.80
ToTaa Board on SPTF .04 0.87
To others 223 0.57
Other Borrowing Cost. 3.10 5.20
5775 4544
e
NOTE-30 ,
OTHER EXPENSES i
Storas and Spara Parts consumed £
{a= Certifind) [100% Indigancus] 7407 63.93
Changes In Falr Value of Raw Material £ 052 145
Changes InFalr Value of Blological Assets {387 2,26
Powvar and Fuel 3 240,00 ELER T
Rent ¥ s -
Repairs & Maintenance:
To Building 519 290
To Machinarles 863 1351
Ta Vahlcles 2588 24.85
To Others 551 4601 GaAT g2
Insurance LEi 542
FRatasand Taxas 439 23
Packing and Despatch Exgonses 848 s
k and Cx d a7 3LE3
Ganeral Charges 211 4.4
Legal and Professionsl Faes 535 438
Rermuneration to Auditors
- For Statutary Audit 056 o040
- For Tox Audit 010 0a0
= For Limited Review 055 040
- For Cartifieation A, 1z 001 051
436,05




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31t Match, 2024

R

NOTE 31 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

. (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars : Asat31% As at 31
! March, 2024 Match, 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Disputed Incoma Tax Demand for the:

-AY.13-14 25.58 25.58
- AY. 14-15 5.38 5.38 |
-AY.16-17 g 18.13 18.13 f
-AY. 19-20 ' 13.39 13.39
-AY.20-21 : 2.69 2.69

Note: The aforementioned demand excludes interest thereon.
NOTE 32 — LONG-TERM LOANS AND ;tRDVANCES

In the opinion of the management, the value of the realization of Long-term Loans and Advances '
and Current Assets in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which
the same are stated in the Balance Sheet.

NOTE 33 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: GRATUITY

The Company's gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, covers the eligible employees and is
administered through a gratuity fund. Such gratuity fund, whose investments are managed by

+ trustees themselves, make payments to vested employees or their nominees upon retirement,

death, incapacitation or cessation of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee's salary and tenure of employment subject to maximum limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. Vesting
occurs upon completion of 5 years of service. ¥

a) Liability in respect of Gratuity up to 31st March, 2024 comes to Rs. 498.16 Lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 440.53 Lakhs) as per Actuarial Valuation Report dated 28" May, 2024 against which
the fund accumulation as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 0.72 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 0.72
Lakhs). Net Liability of Rs. 497.44 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.439.81 Lakhs) including Rs. 57,62

Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 68.16 Lakhs) for the current year remained unprovided in this
Financial Statements.




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+t March, 2024 -

b) The following table sets forth the. particulars in }espec’c of Defined Benefits Plan of the

Company:

Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations {DBO)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended
31st March, 31st March,
2024 2023
Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the 440,53 37237
beginning of the year : :
Current Service Cost 22.40 20.30
Interest Cost 31.72 27.18
Re-measurement (or Actuarial (gains/Losses) arising from: -
- Change in financial assumptions 7.30 3.45
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs. (2.98) 20.06
assumptions)
Benefits paid (0.82) (2.84)
Present Value of DBO at the end of Year (498.15) 440.53
Change in Fair value of Assets ;
(Rs. in Lakhs)
' As at Asat’
31% March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
| Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 4 0.72 0.72
Investment Income -0.05 0.05].
Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognized in (0.05) (0.05)
Net Interest Expense ;
_Actual Company Contribution 0.82 2.84
Benefits paid (0.82) (2.84)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 0.72 ‘072
Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet
Funded Status (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at Asat
% 31st March, z0z4 | 31st March, at23d |
Present Value of Obligation at end of the year 498.15 440.53
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 0.72 0.72
Funded Status [ Surplus/(Deficit)] (497.44) (439.81) |
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DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED _
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2024 .

Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet position

(Rs. In Lakhs)
] For the year ended |
Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Net assgt{(LiabH'{t\n unrecognized in balance sheet at the (439.81) (371.65)
beginning of period
Expense unrecognized in Income Statement (54.07) (47.43)
Expanse unrecognized in Other Comprehensive Income (4.37) {23.56)
Employer contributions 0.82 2.84
‘| Net asset/(Liability) unrecognized in balance sheet at end ) (497.44) 439.81
of the period
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss . _
(Rs. In Lakhs)
A For the year ended
EArculin 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Current Service Cost 22.40 20.30
Net Interest (Income)/ cost on Net Defined Benefit
Liability/(Asset) : Ler p
E:::nse unrecognized in the Statement of Profit and 54.07 . 47.43
Other Comprehensive Income i i
- (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended
Particul .k :
_ articulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to: i
- Change In financial assumptions 7.30 3.45
- Experience variance
(i.e. Actual experience vs. assumptions) (298] 20’06,
Return on Plan Assets, excluding ameunt recognized in 2
net interest expense o L
Components of defined benefit costs unrecognized in ;
other Comprehensive Income 52 B8
Principal Actuarial Assumptions :
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat:
) 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Financial Assumptions ' "
Discount Rate d . 7.20% 7.20% |
(being consistent with vield on long term Govt. bonds) )

:. _I-_ ) \%‘%/




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2024

Rate of Incfease in Salaries 5.00% 5.00%
Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 2012-2014) 100%p.a. 100%p.a.
Normal Retirement Age 58 years 58 Years
Attrition Rates, based on age (% p.a.)
- Upto 40 years 0.42 0.42
- From 41 years to 54 years 0.18 0.18
- More than 54 years 0.22 0.22
For the year ended
Partieiiars 31st March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Current Defined-Benefit Obligation ) 130.10 ‘98.18
Non-Current Defined Benefit Obligation 368.06 342,36
Total Defined Benefit Obligation 498.16 440.53

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are,
discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The Sensitivity Analysis below have
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of
the_reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant. The result of sensitivity

analysis is given below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase |
Discount Rate {-/+1%) 538.32 463.74 478.15 408.29
Salary Growth Rate (-/+ 1%) 462.02 539,71 406.63 479,52
Attrition Rate (-/+ 50%) 497.37 498.93 439.69 441.36
Mottality Rate (-/+ 10%) 497.11 499,18 439.45 441.59

NOTE 34 — SEGMENT REPORTING

%

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on Ségmental Reporting Issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company is a single segment Company mainly engaged in
the cultivating, manufacturing and selling of Tea and therefore Segment Reporting is not

applicable. |




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mazch, 2024

MOTE 35 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As per Indian
Chartered Acc

1. Relationsh

Accounting Standard-24- 'Related Party Disclosures' issued by The Institute of
ountants of India, the names of the related parties are given below:

ip with entities

A. Key Management Personnel:

Ms
Mr

Ms

Fm e R0 TR

B, Compal

Mr.

Mritunjay Jalan — Managing Director
. Avantika Jalan — Director
. Vadakkillam Satheesan Nayar — Executive Director

Mr. Dwija Das Chatterjee — Independent Director

. Ranjan Kumar Saraf — Additional Independent Director w.e.f. 7' March, 2024
. Dharmendra Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer

. Jitendra Sharma— Company Secretary w.e.f. 26% February, 2024.

. Namrata Nahata- Company Secretary resigned w.e.f 1* December, 2023.

nies over which Key Managerial Personnel or Relatives are able to exercise control

[ significant influence

b
L
d
e.
f
g
h

o

Dinjoye Tea Estate Private Limited

. Jalannagar Development Private Limited
. Jalan Industries Private Limited
. Narsingdass Surajmal Properties Private Limited

Jalan Holdings Private Limited

. Jalans Investments Private Limited
. Jalannagar South Estate Private Limited
. Mana Ventures Private Limited

Mana Qrganics Private Limited
Craft Tea Blenders Private Limited

i
Je
k. -Chota Tingari Tea Estate Private Limited
I. Jalans Charity Trust

m/ .




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial State:?m&s for the year ended 31¢ March, 2024

2. The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course
of business:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Mr. Dharmendra Maheshwari | Remuneration 7.20 7.20
Mr. Mritunjay Jalan Director’s 13.44 10.08
Remuneration

a. Details relating to parties

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Dinjoye Tea Estate Private Advance Repaid/ 132.59 182.01

o Limited (given) (82.05) (326.07)
Jalan Holdings Private Limited Loan Taken/ - 16.40

(Repaid) (5.00) (0.15)

Jalan Industries Private Limited Loan Taken / T 19.00 11.00

(Repaid) {272.50) (14.10)

Jalannagar Development Private | Advance Taken/ 180.82 31185

Limited (given) (238.19) (314.61)

Mrityunjay Jalan Loan Taken/ 35.00 2.50

(Repaid) . (0.60) (12.50)

Narsingdass Surajmal Properties | Loan Taken/ 77.00 92.55
Private Limited {Repaid) (32.10) (7.50)

Jalannagar South Estate Private | Advance Taken/ - 167.80 29.10

Limited (given) (77.55) (81.22)

Jalans Investments Private Advance Taken/ 30.85 1.50

Limited (given) ; (127.82) (167.65)

- Rental Income {0.60) (0.60)
Jalans Charity Trust Loan Taken/ 210.56 ~ -

{Repaid) (1.55) o

b. Balance at the year end .
) {Rs.in Lalkhs)

joye Tea Estate Private Advance Taken/ (given) (7.00) (57.54} | #
Limited %
Jalan Holdings Private Limited Unsecured Loan Taken 142.45 147.}15_
Jalan Industries Private Limited | Unsecured Loan Taken 177.13 430.63
Jalannagar Development Private | Advance Taken/ (75.97) (18.60)
Limited (given) S
Mr. Mrityunjay Jalan Unsecured Loan Taken 38.35 4.;}5_

Y
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DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31¢ March, 2024 -

Narsingdass Surajmal Properties | Unsecured Loan Taken 274.40 229.
Private Limited f

Jalannagar South Estate Private | Unsecured Loan Taken/ 21.56 (68.63)
Limited : {given),

Jalans Investments Private Advance Taken/ (255.62) (167.85)
Limited (given) %
Jalans Charity Trust Unsecured Loan Taken 209.01 o=

NOTE 36 — INCOME TAX EXPENSE

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Current tax .
In respect of the current year ) - y
Total ' - =
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year ; (2.81) (10.04)

Total ) (2.81) (10.04)
Total income tax expense recognized in the current year {2.81) {1(?.54}"'

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Profit before tax i (263.28) 92.17
Applicable Tax Rate 26% 26%
Income tax expense , s 2396
Tax Effect of : B
" e Expenses that are not deductible in determining (4.14)
taxable profit (2.81) (17.73)
® Income that is exempt from taxation - ;
e  Brought Forward Losses - [12-'*15']
Income tax expenses recognised in Profit & Loss (A) (2.81) [103‘.043-

Ineome tax expenses recognised In  Other ’ -
Comprehensive Income (B} e

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (2.81) (10.04)

(A+B) '




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31¢ March, 2024

NOTE 37 - EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) i
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (Rs. in Lakhs) (260.47) 102.21
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing 937200 937200
Earnings Per Share (Basic) : 4
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing 937200 937200 |-
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) : o
Earnings Per Share (Basic) (Rs.) (27.79) 10.91
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (Rs.) ] (27.79) | ~  10.91-
Face Value Per Share(Rs.) 10 10

NOTE 38 - FAIR VALUES . ' _ o

Remn::tlatmn of fair value measurement of unquoted equity instruments classified as FVTOCI
assets: B

Set out below, is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Companv s financial
instruments, along with the fair value measurement hLerarchy

(Rs in. LakHs) o

Financial Assets

Unquoted Equity
Shares*
Biological Assets . 218 Level2 =
*Amount is below the rounding off norms adapted by the Company. . &

Level3

NOTE 39 - FINANCIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimize

any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, the Company has r-gskl
management, policies as described below:-

s

“(A) Creditrisk
Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from-default / failure by the counterpartv
to meet financial obligations as per the terms of contract. The Company is exposed to cretit
risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial guarantees and derivative ﬁnanaai
instruments. None of the finarcial instruments of the Company result in matenal
concentration of credit risks.

Q
3

W

T et




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED o
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Credit risk on receivables is minimum since s}ales through different mode (e.g. auction,
consignment, private - both domestic and export) are made after judging credit worthiness
of the customers, advance payment or against letter of credit by banks. The history of defaults
has been minimal and outstandlng receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on tﬁE‘
loans to parties mcludmg associates, the Company is not expet:tlng any material risk on
account of non-performance by any of the partles i

Credit risl from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Gampam{’s
treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus fur{s'ﬂ's

“are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mItiga'té
financial loss through counterparty’s potential failurebtu make payments. '

The tarrying value of the financial assets represents the maximum credit'expesure The
_maximum exposure to credit risk at the repomng date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets. :
(B) Liquidity risk &
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company fails to honor its financial obligatlons in
accordance with terms of contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequatz
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market
positions. = ;s Y
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position {including the
undrawn credit facilities extended by banks and financial institutions) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the Company’s quuidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets
necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and

externai regulatory requirements and mafntgmmg debt financing plans.

. i 4 P
The amounts disclosed in the table are t'he cgntractual undiscounted cash flows. Balarices due
within 12 months equal their carrying bala'\i?ces as the impact of discounting is not significant.

S

wE




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{Rs in. quhs}

Contractual maturities . of | Less than | Between | Between More Total

financial liabilities as at 31| 1Year 1and2 2and 5 than5
March, 2024 years -| years years i
Non-derivatives
‘Borrowings 1368.02 - 34.31 -| 1402.33
(Principal plus interest)
Trade Payables - 111,59 2347 . 431 4.65 14£.02
Other financial liabilities 70.63 34.25 - - 104.88
Total non-derivative financial | 1550.24 |  57.72 38.62 4.65| 165123
liabilities B 5
: (Rs in. Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of | Less than | Between | Between More Tota‘l
financial liabilities as at 31%| 1Year l1and2 | 2and5 than5 :
March, 2023 years years years
Non-derivatives R )

| Borrowings - 1,268.02 E 66.75 -| 1,334.77
(Principal plus interest)
Trade Payables 111.09 13.45 10.98 1.45 136.98
Other financial liabilities 67.94 41.36 - - 109.31
Total non-derivative financial | 1,447.05 54.81 77.73 1.45| 1,581,086
liabilities W

{€) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumerlt
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. .~:
The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company’s
policy is to maintain most of its borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve
this when necessary. During 315 March 2024 and 31% March 2023, the Company’s borrovgmgs
atvariable rate were mainly denominated in INR, :
The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are thamfore not
subject to interest rate risk as defined In Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor
the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2024
i

(i) Price risk -

The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - -

unquoted and classified in the Balance Sheet cither as fair value through OCI or at fair value _

through profit or loss. The Company is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment

in securities. ' :

(D) Agricultural-Risk i
Cultivation of tea being an agricultural activity, there are certain specific financial risks. These
financial risks arise mainly due to adverse weather conditions, logistic problems inherent to
remote areas, and fluctuation of selling price of finished goods (tea) due to increase in
supply/availability.

The Company manages the above financiai.{risks in the following manner: ;

« Sufficient inventory levels of agro chemicals, fertilizers and other inputs are.
maintained so that timely corrective action can be taken in case of adverse weaﬁhe_r g
conditions. . '

« Slightly higher level of consumab!,if.' stores viz. packing materials, coal and HSD are

~ maintained in order to mitigate financial risk arising from logistics problems. .
s _Forward contracts are made with ;:ustomers, in order to mitigate the financial risk in
" fluctuation in selling price of tea. : R ' L -
" s Sufficlent working-capital-facility is obtained from banks in such a way that cultivation,
manufacture and sale of tea is not adversely affected even in times of adverse
conditions. ~ I :

-

. NOTE 40 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s ubiectives when managing capital are to:

1. Safeguard their ability to continue asa going concern, so that they can continue to préjvidé
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and '

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of

dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt. ;

3

_Consistent with others in the industry, the Company mdnitors capital on the basis of net débt to
equity ratio and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio of the Company.

Total debt implies total borrowings of the Company and Equity chmprises all components
attributable to the owners of the Company. ' :

o




'DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2024

The following table summarizes the Total Debt, Equity and Ratio thereof.

(Rs in. Lakhs) -

. i n Debt B
Bofrowings A
-'Non- Current 34.31 66.75
-Current 1,402.27 _1,309.68
' 1436.58 1,376.13
| (ii) Equity attributable to Shareholders {205.87) .54.60
(iii) Debt to equity ratio (6.98) , 22.50

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the' Company has complied with the financial

covenants as imposed by the bank.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the

year ended 315 March 2024 and 31% March 2023,

NOTE 41 - LEASE

o

The Company has entered into Operating lease agreements in letting out space. The lease
agreements are made for specific period. Lease payments received/recognized in the Statement
of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31% March 2054 amounted to Rs. 0.60 Lakhs (Previous Ye_ar-”
Nil). Future receivables for operating lease are as follows:

; (Rs irk. Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 |  As at 315 March 2023
Not later than 1 year 0.60 0.60
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 2.40 2.40
Later than five years 4.80 ‘5.40

Since the lease is an operating lease, the Company is duly accounting for the rental income in l.hE
“books as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 over the period of the lease term.




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

42 Ratlo Analysis )
Ratlo Nomerator Demominator Corrant Pravious | % Varlapee | Reasen for varionen if Varanee
Perlad Perlod than 25%
16 CurrentAsssts | Current Uisbiitles - 045 oc0 | 24054 NA
|_iCurrent Assets B57.18 |  1,048.62
| [Current Lakllities 1887.26 | 1,756.88
2{Debt-equity ratio | Tatal Dabt Sharcholder's Equity {7.21) 2250 | -132.08%|Due ta Incranse in losses during
thia Currant Year
| |Total Debt 133657 |
sharehalder’s E (155,32} 6115
aimmummmm Earning for Dsbt | Debit sarvice 62,80 189| 3051.21%|Due to Increase In fosses during
Service the Current Year and lease
payment made In eurrent year
Earming for (15223)| 1882
taxas + Non-cash operating expenses like
and other
gt Tikem I |
Debt service » Intarast & Lease Payments + (2.42) 100.52
Principal Repayments
[ Return on cquity ratio 377 1017  -62.02%|Due to increase In losses during
gﬂ Currant Year
et Profits aftar taxes — Freference Diuldend (260,47)| 10221
if ai
Average Sha {63.08] 1005
iAverage inventary /S 9.08 S6% —HA
| __|Sete of Products 128032 15471
Average inventary ={Opaning + Closing 163.51 170,19
balance [ 2)
Bj ratlo Total revenue from |Average trade Ba.62 66,18 ~229% Na
ns Recalvables
| |Total revenua 128037 |  1,54571
Average trade debtors = (Opening + Closing 19.81 2337
lﬁ;ﬂmf 2 i
7 =
7|Trade payables turnover ratio Total Purchases | Average Trada Payables 0.02 044  24.51%|No Purchases of Stock In Trade
5 was made during the Clarrent
Vear
Total Purchases 3, 49,41
Trace Payabies 134.51 11228
B|Nat | turnover i Total income 1,24 .18 -43,22%|Due to decrease 1t sales
:‘:ﬂ: %Iﬂi = 128042 | 154571 | i
Working Capital (1,030.15)
!‘Nntgmﬁmlin Net prafit Total incoeme fo.zo)f 0.07 -407.715% | Due to decrease In Nat Profit
. and Met Eales
(Mt profit shall be sfter tax [260.47 16221
et Sales =Net sales shall be calculated a5 128012 | 154571
L gal sales rotumns,
o=
10(Return on czpital employed Earning before Capital Emplayed = ~16.68% 8.59%|  -272.95%|Due to decrease In Earnings
. Intarestand taxes  [Tongibie Hut Worth + bafore Interast and Taxes
Total Debt + Defarred
|Tex Liabl
Earning bafore interest and taves 237,61
Capits € = Tangfble Nat Worth + 123190 | 143474
Total Debt + Tax Lia
|

* Return on Investments fs not appilcable to the Company

R



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 .-

NOTE 43 - MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES ACT, 2006

The Company has identified Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes
dues, which are outstanding: i

(Rs in. Lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31¢ Asat 31°
March 2024 | March 2023
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 7.27 4,70

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - - -
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the - -
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

NOTE 44 z

Balances of Trade Receivables and Other Receivables, Advances, Trade Payables, Other Current
Liabilities Include old carried over balances which are subject to confirmations, periding
reconciliation and adjustments.

NOTE 45 ~ GOING CONCERN

During the year, the Company's financial performance has been adveréely affected due to external
factors beyond the control of the Company""and negative net worth Is due to losses incurred in
the current financial year. Net worth of thé Company as on 31st March, 2024 has been ully
eroded and the ability of the Company to continue as a Going Concern depends upon contiiiued
availability of fihance and future profitable operations of the Company. The Managemeft is
confident that with the Promoters’ and Lenders’ support and various other measures taken by it,
the Company will be able to generate sufficient cash inflows through profitable operations
improving its net working capital position to discharge its current and non-current financial
obligations. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on Going Concern Basis,

as the management is contemplating continuation of the corporate activities and exploring
further business opportunities. i _ k!




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

. Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2024

NOTE 46 - ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE

: B

b)

c)

The Company has not undertaken any transactions with com panies struck off undgr
section 248 of the Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the current
year. .

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Companies and accordingly the disclosure as
to whether the company has complied with the number of layers of companies prescribed
under clause(87) of the of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on numker
of layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable. '

The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested funds in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities {"Intermedialfies"] with the understanding, that the .
intermediary shall lend to or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the company

+ (Ultimate Beneficiaries),

d)

e)

The Company has not received any fund from any other person(s) or entity(ies), includisg
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide am,? guarantee, security or
the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.:

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of1'988} and rules
made thereunder. et : 7

The quarterly returns or statements f current assets filed by the company with banks are
inagreement with the books of accounts details provided to the bank are as on 30t March,

- 2024,

g)

§ E S
None of the Banks, Financial Institutions or other lenders from whom the company has

borrowed funds has declared the company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the
current year or in the previous year. 3

All the charges or satisfaction which is required to be registered with the Registrar ¢f
Companies (ROC) have been duly registered within the statutory time limit provided under
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. -
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction thereof which is yet to b
registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, during the year ending 31st March, 2024
and also for the year ending 31st March, 2023, :

LA}




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

h) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
year ending 31st March, 2024 and also for the year ending 31st March, 2023.

i) The Company does not have any such unrecorded transaction in the books of account that -
has been surrendered or disclosed as incgme during the year in the tax assessments uncler
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search‘\_pr survey or any other relevant provisions of the

Income Tax Act, 1961).

NOTE 47

Previous year figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary.

Signature to Notes 1 to 47

As per our Report annexed
For V.Singhi & Associates
‘Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 311017E

- (Maveen Taparia)

Part_ner
Membership No.: 058433

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30™ May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board .

e g M) 0
Avantika Jalan Mrityunjay Jalan

Director Managing Director
DiM: 03333925 DIN: 07259366

- D. Mai‘leshwaﬂ
Chief Financial Officer

1
1

%

Jitendra Sharma
Company Secretary

=




